City of White Sulphur Springs

The regular meeting of the City Council was held on August 23, 2022 at 6:00 P.M. Mayor Rick Nelson called the meeting to order with the following members present:

Pattie Berg Ron Coleman Rick Ellison Lee Blanchard

A. Call Special Meeting to Order

- B. Roll Call
- C. Pledge of Allegiance to Flag
- **D.** Public Comment: Public comment will be accepted on public matters not listed on this agenda and are within the jurisdiction of the City Council and having a significant interest to the public. During a regular session, there will be time after each agenda item for comment about that item.
 - 1. Step up to the podium and state your name and address for the record.
 - 2. Please limit your comments to THREE (3) minutes.

E. Public Hearing on Proposed Budget 2022-2023

- 1. Open Public Hearing on Proposed Budget for 2022-2023 Take Public Comments, consider adjustments based on comments.
- 2. Close Public Hearing
- 3. Final Discussion from Members of Council Adjustments from Council based on comments.

Possible Motion: Move to Approve the 2022-2023 Budget as proposed or as amended and set for consideration of Resolution of Adoption at meeting on September 6, 2022.

The Mayor, Council, and City Clerk-Treasurer went through the proposed budget document.

The General Fund:

Law Enforcement Services Contract Payment to County – Special Police District this year is 46.920 mills x \$1,565.663 (a mill City) = \$73,460.77. One Deputy at \$75,000 minus the \$73,460.77 = \$1,539.23 to budget for this year. Had budgeted for \$20,000, so the difference is \$18,461 more. The \$18,461 will be divided into three (\$6,153 each) and be transferred from the General fund and placed in the three Capital Projects 4005 fund accounts.

The Mayor said that Chet McLean that is doing the City's Year End Closing of FY June 2022 with the Clerk-Treasurer, mentioned to the Clerk-Treasurer that while he was closing adjustments that he saw a cash reserve issue in the General fund. Chet McLean said that when he did the cash reserve limitation test, he found that the General fund was noncompliant by \$65,000 and since the City still has plenty of appropriation in the General fund he suggested that the City transfer the \$65,000 to the 4005 fund for the FY 22 in the year end closing so that it would not become a

finding. Last years 2021-2022 General fund was budgeted at \$617,162 and at the end of June 2022 the cash balance was \$371,124. The City is only aloud to have 50% of the \$617.162, so (\$617,162/2 = \$305,581 was allowed and left the \$65,543 above the allowed amount. The Mayor proposed to transfer the approximately \$65,000 from the General fund and place it into the 4005 fund (\$50,000 Facilities Administration for the City Shop and \$15,000 to the Parks to be used to replace a failing truck in the Parks Department). The Mayor read out loud the Montana Code 7-6-616. Capital improvement funds. A county, municipal, or special district governing body may establish a capital improvement fund for the replacement, improvement, and acquisition of property, facilities, or equipment that costs in excess of \$5,000 and that has a life expectancy of 5 years or more. A capital improvement plan for the fund must be formally adopted by the county, municipal, or special district governing body. The capital improvement fund may receive money from any source, including funds that have been allocated in any year but have not been expended or encumbered by the end of the fiscal year. Money in the capital improvement fund must be invested as provided by law, and interest and income from the investment of the capital improvement fund must be credited to the fund. The Mayor said that when the Council was working on the CIP document the City believed that only 10% of the General fund reserve could be placed into the Capital Improvements Plan fund but he said that there is nothing in code that states that there is a limitation on deposit.

The Mayor said that the paving contractor is ready to come up and repair/pave over the Lincoln St that the Waterline Main Transmission Phase III Project had torn up. The paving contractor would be able to include approximately four blocks of street paving at the same time if the streets are prepped for paving. The Mayor said that the plan is to have at least four blocks paved and use approximately \$40,000-\$50,000 of the budgeted HB473 Gas Tax funds. The Mayor said that the City Crew will focus on prepping the street by Mathis Farm Food, the street by the Bakery/Senior Center, the street by Rooney's, and the street by Stockman's Bar/Hampton Street.

The Mayor said that the final proposed budget:

1000 General fund \$652,409 410100 Council \$8,944 410200 Mayor \$12,866 410360 Court \$24,778 410500 Financial Services \$81,216 410530 Audit \$12,000 410600 Election Expenses \$2,000 411100 Attorney \$36,000 411200 Facilities Administration \$109,182 411300 Central Communications \$6,500 420100 Law Enforcement Services \$1,539 430200 Road & Street Services \$111.669 430263 Street Lighting \$9,936 430700 Propane \$12,500 430800 Garbage Services \$4,126 431100 Weed Control \$700 440600 Animal Control Services \$43,050 460400 Parks \$65,500

4005 Capital Projects fund \$232,942

411200 Facilities Administration \$126,950 430200 Road & Street Services \$64,527 460400 Parks \$41,465

4008 Community Capital Improvement Plan When the updated CIP document is complete and a new priority list is done then the City can add to the funds after next year.

5210 Water fund \$411,900 5310 Sewer fund \$479,250

The Parks Committee Advisory Chair, Jen Frazer, handed out to the Council the City of White Sulphur Springs Playground Equipment Replacement Assessment with possible safety concerns, possible replacement for equipment, summary of potential replacement costs of about \$86,990 (slide, seesaw, merry go around, climbers & balance, and shipping), and proposed diversity of playground equipment. Great West Engineering Task Order No.2 agreement for \$2,000 to do a T-Mobile Hometown Grant Program Application White Sulphur Springs On-Call services for the Park's Improvements Project of up to \$52,000.

The Mayor asked if there was a motion to accept the proposed amended Preliminary Budget. Pattie Berg motioned to approve the amended proposed Preliminary Budget. Ron Coleman seconded the motion. All said Aye. Motion carried and passed. The next Council meeting will be on Tuesday September 6th.

The Mayor said that last Sunday afternoon an individual's Tennessee truck broke down and set up camp with 16 dogs and 2 cats by the Town Pump. The Deputy stopped by to check out the situation and found out that the individual had a warrant for arrest out and was brought into the Sheriff's Office. The local vet clinic reviewed the animals and recommended that the animals not be given back to the owner. The Animal Control Officer, Marc Pryor, placed the animals in the City Yard Animal Control fenced area. Marc Pryor called several Animal Shelters, but found out that most shelters are full, only the Yellowstone Valley Animal Shelter provided a "maybe" answer to possibly be able to transport the animals to the shelter. Marc Pryor will look into possibly fostering the unaltered Border Collies and two cats. There is one Alpha Male, females, and one female with puppies. Marc Pryor will place an ad in the social media Facebook City pages to find temporary animal fostering community residents. Susan Wordal said that there is a process that an animal cruelty fine goes through. A couple donated \$60 to help take care of the animals. The City will be looking for professionals to help take care of the 18 animals. The local vet might take in and care for the female and puppies.

F. Comments/Discussion

- 1. Future Business
- 2. Mayor's Comments-Rick Nelson
- 3. Council Comments/Discussion
 - a. President of the Council-Pattie Berg

The Council discussed the Bair Park & McStravick Park parking lots, measuring the area length, and an accessible path.

b. Council Member-Ron Coleman

c. Council Member-Rick Ellison

Rick Ellison had sent a letter to Bridget Ekstrom about recommendations to look into affordable housing funding but is still waiting to hear.

d. Council Member-Lee Blanchard

It was mentioned that he would be interested in helping Marc Pryor with the animals. The status of the Skate Park was asked. The group had estimated the project cost being approximately \$350,000 and would be raising the funds to be able to build the Skate Park.

J. Claims Signing/Motion to Approve the Bills

K. Motion/Vote to Adjourn the Meeting

The Mayor asked the Council if there is a motion to adjourn the meeting. Ron Coleman motioned to adjourn the meeting. Lee Blanchard seconded the motion. All said Aye. Meeting adjourned at 7:05 pm.

michelle Staber

Michelle Stidham-Clerk-Treasurer

File

Mayor - Rick Nelson